
 

 
 

PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 
 

Date:- Thursday 21 September 
2023 

Venue:- Town Hall, The Crofts, 
Moorgate Street, Rotherham.  
S60 2TH 

Time:- 9.00 a.m.   
 

Meetings of the Planning Board can all be viewed by live webcast by following this link:- 
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of any part of the agenda.  
  

 
2. To determine any items which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence (substitution)  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest (Page 5) 
 (A form is attached and spares will be available at the meeting) 

 
 
5. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th August, 2023 (Pages 7 - 9) 
  

 
6. Deferments/Site Visits (information attached) (Pages 11 - 12) 
  

 
7. Development Proposals (Pages 13 - 22) 
  

 
8. Updates  
  

 
9. Date of next meeting - Thursday, 12th October, 2023 at 9.00 a.m. at the Town 

Hall  
  

 
Membership of the Planning Board 2023/24 
 

Chair – Councillor Atkin 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Bird 

Councillors Andrews, Bacon, Ball, Burnett, Cowen, Elliott, 
Fisher, Havard, Keenan, Khan, Sheppard, Tarmey and Taylor. 

 
 

 
 

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

 
Planning Regulatory Board 

‘Public Right To Speak’ 
 

 
REGISTERING TO SPEAK 

  
The Council has a “Right to Speak” policy, under which you may speak in the 
Planning Board meeting about an application. If you wish to do this, it is 
important that you complete a tear-off slip and return it with any written 
comments, within 21 days of the date of the notification letter back to the 
Planning Department.  
  
Your comments will be made known to the Planning Board when it considers 
the application and you will be written to advising of the date and time of the 
Planning Board meeting to exercise your right to speak  
  
 If you wish to speak in the meeting, please try to arrive at the venue ten 
minutes before the meeting starts. The reception staff will direct you to the 
Council Chamber. 
 
In the Council Chamber, please give your name to the Board clerk (who will 
have a checklist of names derived from the agenda). The clerk will direct you 
to the seating reserved for people who wish to speak. 
 
The agenda is available online at least 5 days prior to the meeting, and a few 
copies will be made available at the meeting, so you can read the report 
relating to the application which concerns you and see where it comes in the 
agenda. 
 
The Council Chamber is equipped with microphones and a hearing loop. 
 
Take time to familiarise yourself with the layout of the Chamber and the 
procedure of the meeting, before ‘your’ application is reached. 
 
Please note that applications can sometimes be withdrawn or deferred at 
short notice. The Council will do its best to notify the public in advance, 
but on occasions this may not be possible. 
  
The meeting is being filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
website and can be found at:-  
  
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
  
If anyone present or members of the public in the public galleries do not wish 
to have their image captured they should make themselves known to 
Democratic Services before the start of the meeting.  

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

 
  
  

YOUR RIGHT TO SPEAK 
  
The ‘right to speak’ applies equally to the applicant and to the general public.  
  
You will be invited to speak by the Chairman at the correct interval.  
  
Each speaker will be allowed three minutes to state his/her case.  The 
applicant does not have a “right to reply” to the objector(s) comments.  
  
Only planning related comments can be taken into consideration during the 
decision process.  
  

CONDUCT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
  
Speakers should not be allowed to engage in discussion with members of the 
Committee during public speaking or the Committee deliberations, to avoid 
any risk of accusation of bias or personal interest.   
  
All attendees are reminded of the importance to remain calm, courteous and 
respectful during the meeting.  Please refrain from shouting out and allow 
people to speak.   Any person causing a disruption will be asked to leave the 
meeting. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
 

MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

 
Your Name (Please PRINT):- 
 
 
Meeting at which declaration made:- 
 
 
Item/Application in which you have 
an interest:- 
 
 
Date of Meeting:- 
 
 
Time Meeting Started:- 
 
 

Please tick ( √ ) which type of interest you have in the appropriate box below:- 
 

 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary      
 
 
 
 

2. Personal  

 
 
 

Please give your reason(s) for you Declaring an Interest:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N.B.  It is up to a Member to determine whether to make a Declaration.  However, if you should 
require any assistance, please consult the Legal Adviser or Governance Adviser prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

     Signed:- …………………………..…………………………. 
 

(When you have completed this form, please hand it to the Governance Adviser.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Please continue overleaf if necessary) 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



PLANNING BOARD - 10/08/23  
 

PLANNING BOARD 
Thursday 10 August 2023 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Atkin (in the Chair); Councillors Bird, Andrews, Bacon, Burnett, 
Cowen, Fisher, Keenan, Khan, Sheppard, Tarmey and Tinsley. 
 

Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillors Ball, Elliott and 
Taylor.  
 
The webcast of the Planning Meeting can be viewed at:-  
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
10.  

  
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 There were no items on the agenda to warrant exclusion of the press and 
public. 
 

11.  
  
MATTERS OF URGENCY  
 

 There were no matters of urgency for consideration. 
 

12.  
  
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no Declarations of Interest to report. 
 

13.  
  
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 20TH JULY, 2023  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning 
Regulatory Board held on Thursday, 20th July, 2023, be approved as a 
correct record of the meeting. 
 

14.  
  
DEFERMENTS/SITE VISITS  
 

 There were no site visits or deferments recommended. 
 

15.  
  
SITE VISIT - OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF UP TO 
217 DWELLINGHOUSES INCLUDING DETAILS OF ACCESS AT LAND 
OFF SHROGSWOOD ROAD, WHISTON FOR ERNEST V. 
WADDINGTON LTD. (RB2022/0017)  
 

 Resolved:-  (1)  That, on the development proposals now considered, the 
requisite notices be issued and be made available on the Council’s 
website and that the time limits specified in the agenda report in lieu of 
Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 apply. 
 
In accordance with the right to speak procedure the following people 
attended the meeting and spoke about the application:- 
 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 PLANNING BOARD - 10/08/23 
 

Mr. J. Martin (Objector) 
Mr. P. Hunter (Objector) 
Mr. A. Claxton (Objector) 
Ms. E. Reynard (Objector) 
Mrs. J. Sharp (Objector) 
Mr. S. Sharp (Objector) 
Councillor Griffin (Objector) 
Mr. A. Stafford M.P. (Objector) 
 
A statement was read out on behalf of Mr. C. Taylor (Objector) by 
Mr. J. Martin 
 
(2)  That, with regards to application RB2022/0017:- 
 
(a)   The Council enter into an Agreement under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 for the purposes of securing the 
following:- 
 

 25% of the total number of dwellings are to be provided on site for 
affordable housing provision in accordance with the Council’s 
adopted Policy CS7’ Housing Mix and Affordability’. 

 Education contribution in line with the Council’s adopted formulae 
towards Listerdale Primary School. 

 Commuted sum of £500 per dwelling towards sustainable transport 
measures. 

 A maximum of £12,000 towards improvements to footpath link 
between points A and B on the attached plan should the claims 
application be successful. 

 A commuted sum of £57,989.83 to carry out improvements to Bus 
Stops 35016 (Bawtry Road/Sheepcote Road); 30879 (East Bawtry 
Road/ Wickersley Road) and 30263 (East Bawtry Road/Wickersley 
Road). 

 Formation of a Local Equipped Area of Play (LEAP) for older 
children prior the occupation of the 75th dwelling. 

 Formation of a Local Area of Play (LAP) and toddler play area prior 
to the occupation of the 150th dwelling. 

 A commuted sum of £6,000 towards improvements of the Barfield 
Avenue allotment site in Whiston. 

 Establishment of a Management Company to manage and maintain 
the areas of Greenspace, including the proposed LAP and LEAP. 

 
(b) subject to the satisfactory signing of such an agreement, the Council 
resolves to grant planning permission for the proposed development 
subject to the reasons for grant and conditions listed in the submitted 
report. 
 

16.  
  
UPDATES  
 

 There were no updates to report. 
 

Page 8



PLANNING BOARD - 10/08/23  
 

17.  
  
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Planning Board take place on 
Thursday, 31st August, 2023 at 9.00 a.m. at Rotherham Town Hall. 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING BOARD 

 
 

DEFERMENTS 
 
 

 Planning applications which have been reported on the Planning Board 
Agenda should not be deferred on request without justification. 

 

 Justification for deferring a decision can arise from a number of matters:- 
 

(a) Members may require further information which has not previously 
been obtained. 

 
(b) Members may require further discussions between the applicant and 

officers over a specific issue. 
 

(c) Members may require a visit to the site. 
 

(d) Members may delegate to the Assistant Director of the Service the 
detailed wording of a reason for refusal or a planning condition. 

 
(e) Members may wish to ensure that an applicant or objector is not 

denied the opportunity to exercise the “Right to Speak”. 
 

 Any requests for deferments from Members must be justified in Planning 
terms and approved by the Board.  The reason for deferring must be 
clearly set out by the Proposing Member and be recorded in the minutes. 

 

 The Assistant Director of Planning, Regeneration and Transport or the 
applicant may also request the deferment of an application, which must 
be justified in planning terms and approved by the Board. 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



SITE VISITS 

 

 Requests for the Planning Board to visit a site come from a variety of sources:- 
the applicant, objectors, the Parish Council, local Ward Councillors, Board 
Members or sometimes from the Assistant Director of Planning, Regeneration 
and Transport. 

 

 Site visits should only be considered necessary if the impact of the proposed 
development is difficult to assess from the application plans and supporting 
information provided with the officer’s written report; if the application is 
particularly contentious or the application has an element that cannot be 
adequately expressed in writing by the applicant or objector.  Site visits can 
cause delay and additional cost to a project or development and should only be 
used where fully justified. 

 

 The reasons why a site visit is called should be specified by the Board and 
recorded. 

 

 Normally the visit will be programmed by Democratic Services to precede the 
next Board meeting (i.e. within three weeks) to minimise any delay. 

 

 The visit will normally comprise of the Members of the Planning Board and 
appropriate officers.  Ward Members are notified of visits within their Ward. 

 

 All applicants and representees are notified of the date and approximate time of 
the visit.  As far as possible Members should keep to the schedule of visits set 
out by Committee Services on the Board meeting agenda. 

 

 Normally the visit will be accessed by coach.  Members and officers are 
required to observe the site directly when making the visit, although the item will 
be occasioned by a short presentation by officers as an introduction on the 
coach before alighting.  Ward Members present will be invited on the coach for 
this introduction. 

 

 On site the Chair and Vice-Chair will be made known to the applicant and 
representees and will lead the visit allowing questions, views and discussions.  
The applicant and representees are free to make points on the nature and 
impact of the development proposal as well as factual matters in relation to the 
site, however, the purpose of the visit is not to promote a full debate of all the 
issues involved with the application.  Members must conduct the visit as a group 
in a manner which is open, impartial and equitable and should endeavour to 
ensure that they hear all points made by the applicant and representees. 

 

 At the conclusion of the visit the Chair should explain the next steps.  The 
applicant and representees should be informed that the decision on the 
application will normally be made later that day at the Board meeting subject to 
the normal procedure and that they will be welcome to attend and exercise their 
“Right to Speak” as appropriate. 

Page 12



 
 
 
REPORT TO THE PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 
TO BE HELD ON THE 21st SEPTEMBER 2023 
 
 
The following applications are submitted for your consideration. It is 
recommended that decisions under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be 
recorded as indicated. 
 
INDEX PAGE 
 

RB2023/0938 
Change of use to Childrens Care Home at 6 Hunger Hill Road 
Whiston for WLKA Properties 

 
Pages 13-22 

 

Page 13 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



REPORT TO THE PLANNING BOARD  
TO BE HELD ON THE 21st September 2023 
 
The following applications are submitted for your consideration. It is 
recommended that decisions under the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 be recorded as indicated. 
 
 

Application Number 
RB2023-0938 (https://rotherham.planportal.co.uk/?id=RB2023/0938)  

Proposal and 
Location 

Change of use to Childrens Care Home, 6 Hunger Hill Road, 
Whiston 

Recommendation Granted Conditionally  

 
This application is being presented to Planning Board due to the number of 
objections received. 
 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The application site is a semi detached red brick property, located on Hunger 
Hill Road in Whiston. The area consists of suburban residential dwellings, with 
the Whiston Junior and Infant school set to the rear.  

Page 15

https://rotherham.planportal.co.uk/?id=RB2023/0938


 
Background 
 
RB2023/0661 - Application for Lawful Development Certificate re: Proposed 
conversion of garage to habitable space & replacement of garage door with 
glazed French doors – GRANTED  
 
(Application was approved on the understanding that the use was a domestic 
property, as opposed to a care home use) 
 
Proposal 
 
The property is to be used as a children’s residential care home for one child 
at a time with learning disabilities, for short stay breaks. Up to two staff will be 
present at anyone time. 
 
Some external changes to the property have already taken place in 
preparation for the care home use, including the replacement of the garage 
door with French doors, some internal alterations and a new rear garden 
fence. These alterations do not require planning permission in their own right.   
 
The site has parking for three cars and the applicant has agreed to upgrade 
some of the spaces with additional gravel replacing grass.  
 
The applicant states: 
 
There will be one child supported at the property with two staff.  Staff will work 
long days 07:00 - 22:00, with one staff staying overnight, the second one 
waking night support worker leaves in the morning at 07:00 to be replaced by 
someone who will work a long day.  
 
If there is any movement during the day it would be with the child using one of 
the support worker's cars. All vehicles will be parked on the drive. Movements 
will just be like in any other household. 
 
In response the objections received the applicant has stated that: 
 
1. Regarding melt downs, children are assessed, carefully screened and 

staff trained to work in line with their needs. 
2. No risk anticipated for children at the school because staff are well 

trained to support children and there is no direct access to the school. 
3. The children with special needs will also be attending school and these 

children are not a danger to society. 
4. There are no significant changes to the property other than 

redecoration which would have happened with any other new 
purchase. Garage is mainly to be used a games/play area and 
changes were made with building regulations consent. 

5. There will not be a parking problem because the property has enough 
room for at least three cars. 

Page 16



6. There will not be a lot of movement that will change the dynamics 
within the neighbourhood because staff work long days. 

7. In terms of risk to others in the local area, any child will have 
supervision at all times. What they do at the property will be not 
different to what would have happened at the property if there was a 
family with children living in it. 

8. Regarding the type of children at the property it will be children will 
special needs.  

9. There is no direct access to the school because a new fence was 
installed. 

10. Parking will be on the front yard of the property.  
11. Shift patterns clarified in an email dated 25th July. Shift patterns 

minimises disruptions. 
12. The children have special needs and are not a danger to the 

community. They come for respite/short break to give 
parents/guardians a break from their caring role. 

13. Children will still be attending school as they normally would when they 
live with their families. 

14. The property has enough room to accommodate a child and two staff. 
It has 4 bedrooms, a lounge, large kitchen, games room and secured 
private back garden. 

15. Regarding informing residents, efforts were made to inform the two 
immediate neighbours. 

16. Activities at the property will not be different to any other household. 
17. Yes, there are no employees of the company working at the property 

except for individually contracted workmen. 
18. The property has not been changed, yes a new bathroom was put in. 
19. The games room has a side window so there is no need to open the 

doors at the front. They can be opened in the event of a fire. 
20. Yes, the property was bought at £260 000 and the idea of looking after 

one child at a  time does make business sense because of the number 
of hours worked by staff. 
 

Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on the 10th September 2014 
and forms part of Rotherham’s Local Plan together with the Sites and Policies 
Document which 
was adopted by the Council on the 27th June 2018. 
 
The application site is allocated for residential purposes in the Local Plan. For 
the purposes of determining this application the following policies are 
considered to be of 
relevance: 
 
Local Plan policy(s): 
SP 11 Development in Residential Areas 
 

Page 17



Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) - On 6 March 2014 the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) launched this 
planning practice guidance web-based resource. This was accompanied by a 
Written Ministerial Statement which includes a list of the previous planning 
practice guidance documents cancelled when this site was launched. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The revised NPPF sets out the 
Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be applied. 
It sits within the plan-led system, stating at paragraph 2 that “Planning law 
requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise” and that it is “a material consideration in planning 
decisions”. 
 
The Local Plan policies referred to above are consistent with the NPPF and 
have been given due weight in the determination of this application. 
 
Publicity 
 
The application has been advertised by way of site notices along with 
individual neighbour notification letters to adjacent properties. 9 letters of 
objections have been received from local residents.  
 
The objectors raise the following concerns: 
 

 The site is not suitable for children with special needs, due to noise, the 
presence of the nearby school and drug misuse in the area.  

 Work has already started, including changing the garage door for patio 
doors, which is unsightly.  

 Noise and disturbance from the coming and goings of staff and cars.  

 Noise and disturbance to the adjoining semi from the children in care.  

 The applicant may request additional child places, should the proposed 
be approved.  

 Due to the location close to a school, on street parking is not suitable at 
certain times and the development will add to parking issues in the 
area.  

 The site needs to suitably secure to ensure children under care to do 
not escape.  

 The staff need to be suitably qualified and able to cope with the 
children in care.  

 
 
Six people have requested the right to speak at Planning Board including the 
applicant.  
 

Page 18



Consultations 
 
RMBC – Transportation and Highway Design – No objections subject to 
relevant conditions. 
 
Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have 
regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
The main considerations in the determination of the application are: 

 The Principle of the Development 

 Impact on General Amenity 

 Transportation Considerations 

 Other Matters Raised by Local Residents 
 
 
Principle of the Development 
 
The proposed use would fall within class C2 ‘Residential Institutions’ (use for 
the provision of residential accommodation and care to people in need of 
care). 
 
Recent planning law has noted that a change of use from C3 to C2 might not 
result in a material change of use if the resulting use of the building is similar 
to the character to that of a normal dwelling house. In this instance it is 
considered that there would be a material change of use due to the 
changeovers of staff at this property and the fact that the use is for respite 
care as opposed to a permanent resident for a child.  
 
The site is allocated for Residential Use within the Local Plan and Local Plan 
policy SP11 ‘Development in residential Areas’ states “Residential areas 
identified on the Policies Map shall be retained primarily for residential uses. 
All residential uses shall be considered appropriate in these areas and will be 
considered in light of all relevant planning policies.” As such, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle. 
 

Page 19



Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is for the use of the dwelling as a children’s respite home for 
one child at any one time. The property would be accessed by the child, two 
members of staff and other support workers. These comings and goings and 
associated vehicle movements may differ from the level of activity beyond that 
which would normally be associated with a dwelling house, however, it is not 
considered to be of a level which would create a significant impact on the 
residential amenity of the adjoining or adjacent neighbours and as such would 
not justify refusing the planning application on these grounds. 
 
The applicant has confirmed that the changeover time for staff is at 7am and 
10pm, and so it is not considered that the increase in activity at the property 
would give rise to an increased level of noise and disturbance during 
unsociable hours and whilst it will increase during daytime hours, it is 
considered that the level of noise associated with increased vehicular 
movements would not lead to a significant impact on the residential amenity of 
existing nearby residents. 
 
Objections have been received from local residents raising concerns about 
noise and disturbance from the care home, as well as the suitability of the 
location.  
 
The one child accommodated within the property will be supervised on a 24 
hour basis and as such, it is not considered that this issue would create any 
significant impact on the residential amenity of existing residents or the wider 
community as a whole. In this respect the proposal would be considered to 
have a character akin to that of a residential dwelling, and as such is 
considered acceptable in a residential area. There are no relevant planning 
policies which dictate that such uses should not be located close to one 
another, and due to the nature of the proposal it is considered to be 
residential in character, which is appropriate in this residential area. 
 
Transportation 
 
After assessing the submitted application the Transportation Officer has noted 
that the site frontage is available for car parking purposes, for three cars. This 
being the case the Transportation Officer raises no objections to the 
application as there is sufficient on site parking.  
 
Objections have been received that the proposal, if approved, would cause 
further parking problems for residents, in view of the existing parking 
problems caused by the local school.   
 
As noted above the Transportation Officer raises no objections in relation to 
Highway Safety concerns and is happy with the level of parking available on 
the site. It is also noted that there parking restrictions along Hunger Hill Road 
to prevent cars parking too close to the pedestrian access to the local junior 
school.  
 

Page 20



Other Matters Raised by Local Residents 
 
A number of objections have raised concerns about how the home will be run, 
the type of staff and if the children can be retained on site. These issues will 
be addressed by a separate body and are not for consideration as part of this 
submission.  
 
In terms of the concerns about the retrospective nature of the application, 
these changes were at the applicant’s own risk, and do not have a bearing on 
any determination. Finally in terms of the potential to increase the number of 
children under care, a condition has been added restricting the number of 
children to one only. Should the number of children increase the applicant is 
aware they would need to vary this condition and the Council would have to 
judge whether additional children would be harmful  
 
Conclusion 
 
Given the location of the dwelling, together with the nature and intensity of the 
proposed use, to look after one child only, it is considered that any noise and 
disturbance generated would be akin to a “traditional” residential dwelling, and 
whilst there could be an increase in comings and goings especially at shift 
change over times, this would be within daytime hours so would not create 
such a significant impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents that would 
justify refusing planning permission on these grounds. Furthermore, the 
presence of several carers at any one time will ensure that the child and/or 
young person in care are suitably supervised minimising any impact on the 
amenity of neighbours or the wider community. 
 
It is also considered that the onsite car parking proposed  is appropriate from 
a highway safety aspect. It is therefore recommended that planning 
permission is granted conditionally. 
 
Conditions  
 
01 
The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
02 
The premises shall be used as a residential care home only and for no other 
purpose (including any other purpose in Class C2 of the Schedule to the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 2987, (or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification). 
 

Page 21



Reason 
The premises are not considered suitable for general use within the Class 
quoted for amenity and highway reasons. 
 
03 
The number of children cared for at the site shall be limited to 1 at any one 
time. 
 
Reason 
In accordance with the details submitted with the application and for the 
avoidance of doubt. 
 
04  
Before the development is brought into use, that part of the site to be used by 
vehicles shall be properly constructed with either a/ a permeable surface and 
associated water retention/collection drainage, or b/ an impermeable surface 
with water collected and taken to a separately constructed water retention / 
discharge system within the site.  
 
The area shall thereafter be maintained in a working condition. 
 
Reason  
To ensure adequate on site drainage. 
 
 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
The applicant and the Local Planning Authority engaged in pre application 
discussions to consider the development before the submission of the 
planning application.  The application was submitted on the basis of these 
discussions, or was amended to accord with them.  It was considered to be in 
accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th August, 2023
	6 Deferments/Site Visits (information attached)
	7 Development Proposals
	COMREP210923


